
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

December 07, 2021 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  December 6, 2021 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

1. Appointment for the vacant position of Police Officer. 

2. Appointment for the vacant position of Firefighter. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. To recognize Assistant Chief Ralph Hutchinson and Assistant Chief Byron Perry who recently retired 

from the Abbeville Fire Department. 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the minutes from the Committee meeting held on November 2, 2021 and the regular City 

Council meetings held on November 2, 2021 and November 16, 2021. 

2. To ratify bills paid in the month of November 2021. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. To approve a resolution adopting the schedule of legal holidays for 2022. 

2. To award the contract for removal of a fallen tree at 400 Gauraud Street from bids received. 

3. To award the contract for removal of a fallen tree at 300 S. East Street from bids received. 

4. To consider quotes for clean out of the wet well for the Main Sewer Lift Station and to pay the project 

from American Rescue Plan Act funds - Lee Schexnaider. 

5. To adopt a resolution authorizing Sellers and Associates to prepare and the Mayor to sign any and all 

documents related to the Love Louisiana Outdoors Program and to commit local funds for engineering 

and grant administration fees - Councilman Francis Plaisance. 

6. To enter into an intergovernmental agreement between the City of Abbeville and the Vermilion Parish 

Police Jury for the resurfacing of the parking lot at Chris Crusta Memorial Airport whereby the City will 

commit $10,000 for the asphalt and the Vermilion Parish Police Jury will commit to the labor and 

balance of asphalt needed for the project and to authorize the Mayor to execute same. 

7. To adopt a resolution committing to establish a long term lease for 10 or more acres of land located 

adjacent to the Chris Crusta Memorial Airport with the Louisiana National Guard 256 Infantry - Mr. 

Homer Stelly. 

8. Discussion and possible action on creating camper spots with water, sewage and electricity at 

Comeaux Park - Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

9. To approve the quote from Turf Grass Farms for sod for Sellers Field with $3,240 to be paid from 

Councilman Touchet's capital outlay funds and $3,240 to be paid from Councilman Broussard's capital 

outlay funds. 

10. To approve payment of pay application number 1 in the amount of $1,377,975.00 payable to 

GeoSurfaces, Inc. for the Comeaux Park Renovation project. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1



1. Discussion and possible approval of the restroom trailer project - Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Parks and Recreation Director-QSA 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

1. To consider an order of administrative leave as issued by Mayor Piazza on November 17, 2021. 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



 1 

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting  

November 2, 2021 

 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on November 2, 

2021 at 5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., and Roslyn White  

 

Members Absent: Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

 

Also Present: Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

 Sarah Alpough, Director of Revenue, Regulatory Codes & 

                                                     Permits 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here for an Ordinance Committee meeting chaired by 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard. All three of the topics that are on the agenda all apply to our 

blighted property ordinances of the City. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any of the agenda items.  

There were none. 

 

Mayor Piazza read the three proposed items aloud.  The first item would increase the fine limit.  

The second item would adopt the Louisiana Litter and Penalties statutes.  The third item dealt 

with abandoned or illegally parked motor vehicles.  He felt like this one needs the most 

discussion.  Mr. Funderburk has made proposed changes in the ordinance.  He will discuss the 

litter violations as well as blighted property.  Sarah is also here.  All of our blighted property 

issues are handled through the Tax and Permit Department.  Sarah is the head of that 

department.  She gets all the complaints.  He turned the floor over to Ike.  Ike stated that he 

attended the Louisiana Municipal Association continuing legal education seminar for City 

Attorneys.  There were about 20 of them in the room and all the people he spoke to were singing 

the same song.  We are losing population and some of our tax base.  We have a lot of blighted 

property because grandma died and all the kids are gone and all the grandkids are gone and 

they are not interested in the property.  We have crime.  These things are interconnected.  That 

blighted property becomes a place where drugs are done and where bad things happen to 

people.  They all fit together.  If we don’t have the support in one area then we will have system 

breakdowns in other areas.  There was a time in Abbeville when the ordinances for the City 

reflected the statues for the State of Louisiana.  It set forth the policies and procedures for 

handling litter and blighted property and junk cars.  He doesn’t know what happened, because 

he wasn’t the City Attorney, but there were some changes made that set up an administrative 

hearing to take that duty or obligation away from the Council.  The Public Works Director 

conducted the administrative hearings and dealt with all those people who had the blighted 

property and the junked automobiles.  The problem with that is that by doing that we gave up 

our immunity from lawsuit from the people who owned the vehicles or have a claim that they 

feel like they have been discriminated in one way or another or they feel like their property has 

been taken away from them because the property was condemned.  What we have been trying 

to do over the last couple of years is to integrate ourselves back into the system that the State 

of Louisiana set up for us.  In doing that we have made some changes.  We can legislate until 

the cows come home, but if you don’t have enforcement, it does no good at all.  But if we do not 

legislate, we will create a vacuum and nature abhors a vacuum.  If we do not say, “thou shalt 

not litter, thou shalt not maintain junk automobiles, etc.” then we will become a junk yard.  It 

will get worse.  He doesn’t have all the answers.  He is still trying to ask the right questions.  

There are some low hanging fruit that we can do without much effort.  Within the last couple of 

years, the legislature has increased the fines that can be charged by municipal courts.  Any 

littering case we have will go to our municipal court.  We can increase the penalties from $500 

to $1,000.  Will somebody who has a first offense be fined $1,000?  No, probably not but there 

is a threat that they can be fined that much.  Mayor Piazza asked who charges the fine?  Mr. 

Funderburk stated City Court.  The police department would do the investigation or we would 

3



 2 

have someone who is a concerned citizen as a witness.  The charge would be filed and if the 

case can be proved, the judge would set the fine and the Marshal is ordered to collect.  Mayor 

Piazza asked how many of these $500 fines we have collected in the last 6 months?  Mr. 

Funderburk stated we haven’t collected any because there haven’t been any charges filed.  

Mayor Piazza asked why we are considering raising it to $1,000 when we haven’t even collected 

the first penny on the $500.  Mr. Funderburk stated that he is trying to give the City as much 

leverage as we lawfully can have.  Councilman Plaisance asked what are the consequences if 

they don’t pay the fine?  Mr. Funderburk stated that they could go to jail.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that this would be a misdemeanor violation and the order would have to come from the judge 

who is not in this conversation tonight.  Mr. Funderburk stated that all we are doing here is 

bringing us up to speed with what the legislature says that we can fine people.  Councilwoman 

Broussard stated that she is for penalizing for illegal dumping and the litter.  She works hard 

to try to maintain a clean district.  Once we get here at the table and decide to go ahead with 

this and it is not enforced then we are just wasting time and spinning our wheels.  She rides her 

district a lot and she takes pictures and depends on citizens. We ask them to report when there 

is crime.  They don’t do that.  Mr. Funderburk stated then do we do nothing because we don’t 

think the public will support us?  Councilwoman White stated she is 100% on board with raising 

this to the maximum fine but she does not want the conversation to stop there.   We have to 

discuss the enforcement.  She has had conversations with multiple people as well as the Mayor 

about the need for a compliance officer or an enforcement officer.  Do we need to make that a 

part-time position in the police department where a police officer gets extra pay for it?  How 

can we enforce it and make progress?  Having a maximum fine and not collecting it and having 

no enforcement does us no good.  Mayor Piazza stated that we need to see if we can prove to 

ourselves and let the system do what it is supposed to do and see if we can collect the $500 

before we make all these changes.  If you don’t enforce it and are not collecting what you have, 

then he doesn’t see the benefit of the change.  Making it a larger amount will not deter the 

public to not violate these ordinances.  Sarah Alpough asked why does this have to go through 

a court process?  Why can’t we lien the property?  Mayor Piazza stated because what we are 

doing for other violations is charging the customer for a service the City performed that the 

City is getting reimbursed for because the property owner didn’t do it themselves and the 

Council ordered that it be abated.  This would be like tearing down a house are cutting the 

grass in a yard.  That has been ordered by the City and we spent that money to have it done.  

You are putting it on their tax roll to get reimbursed.  It is not a fine.  It is something different.  

Mr. Funderburk added that what Sarah is talking about are civil penalties.  He is talking about 

criminal penalties.  Councilman Plaisance agreed with the Mayor that we need to try to collect 

the $500 before we try to increase it.  We are not enforcing a lot of the ordinances in our City 

now.  Mr. Funderburk discussed item number 2.  He had sent everyone an email about the 

changes regarding the littering penalties that were adopted by the Louisiana legislature in 

2018.  What he suggests is that we adopt it like we have adopted the other state statutes to be 

part of our ordinances.  This deals with the intentional littering and creates criminal penalties.  

They have a gross littering prohibition and commercial littering.  You have a community service 

for litter abatement work program and legal enforcement with penalties.  This brings us up to 

speed with what the legislature has deemed to be appropriate state wide.  He also agrees that 

we need someone who is dedicated for code enforcement.  It’s a job all by itself.  Councilman 

Broussard stated that he has suggested this for years.  This is a position that would pay for 

itself with uncollected fines and permits.  People are putting up structures in the City without a 

permit.  We could offset that salary with a part-time person doing that.  Councilman Plaisance 

stated that people are creating their own dump sites.  Mayor Piazza stated he is happy with this 

suggested proposal.  We should make every effort to try to stifle the illegal dumping and 

littering.  Enforcement is a very difficult situation.  We have a new public works director that 

may have some ideas and we can work with solid waste on some of these issues.  You have to 

have law enforcement back you up when it comes to illegal dumping and littering.  Law 

enforcement has to be there to write tickets.  There were no issues with number 2.  Mr. 

Funderburk discussed item number 3.  This is a comprehensive of our retelling of our 

abandoned, junked and illegally parked vehicles.  He created another definition where we 

defined the term improperly stored vehicle.  This would mean any vehicle that is stored on 

private property that is not stored in an enclosed area such as a garage, carport or a fenced 

area and is visible.  We minimized some of the notices that are required because our ordinance 

was changed which gave them more time than the legislature had given.  He is pulling some of 

that stuff back.  We can bring the Department of Wildlife & Fisheries for boats.  He realizes 

that there has been an issue raised in regards to motor vehicles and boats.  Sarah stated that 

the towing companies will not pick up boats because they can’t make any money off of them.  

Solid waste does accept junk boats but most of the junk boats are not on trailers.  There is no 

way to get the boats there.  As far as the vehicles that are on private property, the towing 

4



 3 

companies won’t touch them unless they have an order from a City judge or the City attorney.  

She can’t call them and tell them to pick it up because they will be charged with theft.  Mr. 

Funderburk stated that we can make that work.  When we have our hearings before the City 

Council, the Council can order that it shall be removed within a certain number of days.  That 

is a lawful order that can be enforced and the towing company would accept that.  Sarah stated 

that right now we do not have a hearing for abandoned vehicles.  If we do hearings then we 

will have documentation.  Mayor Piazza stated that when Donna Baudoin was here, she had a 

company that would pick up the cars for junk and would sell it for scrap.  He doesn’t know what 

happened to that company.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that not everybody can afford to 

keep their vehicle under cover.  Also, she knows a lady in her district that has a car that she 

would would like to get rid of but she still owes on it.  She wants to be mindful with this and 

keep this under consideration.  Mayor Piazza stated that he agrees with Councilwoman 

Broussard.  He has a real problem with the ordinance for several reasons.  He knows we have 

some blatant violators out there and that is ashamed but we have to treat everybody the same 

and we have to make laws that apply to everyone.  Nothing offends him more than when he 

drives to work every morning and sees the old junk motor homes at the gas station.  It has been 

parked there for years.  But you are telling me that we want to create an ordinance that says I 

can’t park in my driveway and he can’t park his boat on the side of the house?  Mr. Funderburk 

stated that it would have to be determined if it was improperly parked.  If it is parked on the 

right of way on the street then that is improperly parked.  It is improperly parked if it is not in 

a garage, carport, fenced area or otherwise visible area.  Mayor Piazza stated this says that it 

has to be hidden from public view.  This says that I can’t park in my driveway.  Mr. Funderburk 

stated that is correct.  We can adjust the ordinance to make it work better.  Mayor Piazza stated 

we could table it to see if we can come up with some language that works.  It is a tough one and 

it is a very difficult situation.  Councilwoman White also asked that we try to find a towing 

company and/or put in any provisions in the ordinance regarding this.  We need that the vehicle 

can be picked up by someone. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to table item 

number 1 and item number 3.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to 

recommend to the City Council at their next meeting to adopt an ordinance to amend and re-

enact Chapter 13-Article I- in general section 13-1; State statutes adopted by reference to add 

subparagraph (176)-R.S. 32:2531, et Sequa-Louisiana Litter and Penalties.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked the Council to think of people who could do code enforcement on a part-

time basis and let him know. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

5



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

November 2, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on November 2, 2021 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Brady Broussard, Jr., Terry 

Broussard, Jr., and Roslyn White    

 

Members Absent:  Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr.   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Sarah Alpough, Director of revenue, codes & permits 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Richard Minvielle, Grants Consultant 

    Michael Wiltz, City of Abbeville retiree 

    Carlton Campbell, candidate for Councilman at Large 

    Dr. Elista Istre, Louisiana Military Museum 

    Brian Ford, Boys and Girls Club 

    Tommy Picard, Park & Recreation Director, QSA  

    Mike Hardy, former Police Chief 

               

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Carlton Campbell to lead those assembled in prayer. Mayor Piazza asked 

Mr. Mike Hardy to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

Mayor Piazza recognized Mr. Michael Wiltz for his service to the City.  Mr. Wiltz retired from our 

Street Department.  That is probably one of the toughest jobs and most thankless jobs.  You are 

out there in rain or shine and hot or cold.  It gets hot out there in the summer time when you are 

using a weed eater all day long.  It is not an easy job but Mr. Wiltz did it very well and we very 

much appreciated it.  He presented Mr. Wiltz a plaque of recognition.  He retired after 14 years 

of service. 

 

Mr. Carlton Campbell announced his candidacy for Councilman at Large for the City of Abbeville.  

Mr. Campbell served on the City Council for 12 years.  He has decided to run because the seat is 

being given up because the current Councilman at Large is running for Mayor.  He has served on 

many boards.  He started the cleanup on Martin Luther King when he was Councilman there.  He 

is the founder of Herbert William Park.  We did a lot for drainage in his district and he plans to do 

more if elected.  He is a proponent of recreation to keep our young men busy.  He worked at the 

Courthouse all of his life.  He asked for everyone’s vote. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

minutes from the special City Council meeting held on September 21, 2021, the Council personnel 

6



2 
 

interview meeting held on October 19, 2021 and the regular City Council meetings held on 

September 21, 2021, October 5, 2021 and October 19, 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  There were 

none. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve a 

special event permit for the Junior Auxiliary of Abbeville to hold a “Here Comes Santa 5K Run” at 

Magdalen Square on December 11, 2021 from 8:00 AM to 11:00 AM and to waive the permit fee.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve a 

special event permit for the Louisiana Military Museum to hold their 1st Annual Veterans’ Festival 

at the Chris Crusta Memorial Airport from November 12, 2021 through November 13, 2021 and 

to waive the permit fee.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve a 

special event permit for Abbeville’s Cajun Christmas Celebration to be held in downtown 

Abbeville on December 11, 2021 from 4:30 PM to 9:00 PM.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to authorize 

the Mayor to execute change order number 1 relative to Phase I of the City’s LCDBG Clearance 

Program with Stallion Oilfield Services.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to authorize 

the Mayor to execute change order number 1 relative to Phase II of the City’s LCDBG Clearance 

Program with Home Industry Disposal Company.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to authorize 

the Mayor to execute change order number 1 relative to Phase III of the City’s LCDBG Clearance 

Program with Vermilion Shell & Limestone.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

T. Broussard/B. Broussard 

Resolution R21-38 

 

A resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute the certificate of substantial completion pertaining 

to Phase I, Phase II and Phase III of the City’s LCDBG Clearance Program. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to appoint Sellers 

and Associates, Inc. for engineering services at the Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial Airport and 

authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement with Sellers and Associates, Inc for same.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to surplus a Glock 

model 17, 9mm service weapon bearing serial number BMWY520 which belonged to Lieutenant 

Jason Hebert, who recently retired, so he can purchase the gun at the appraised value.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

7



3 
 

B. Broussard/Plaisance 

Resolution R21-39 

 

A resolution requesting LA DOTD to inspect the condition of Louisiana Highway 14 from its 

intersection with Louisiana Highway 82 to Louisiana Highway 167 (Park Avenue) and thereafter 

do and perform all the repair and/or maintenance work thereon in a timely fashion in accordance 

with the best practices of a duty diligent property owner under the circumstances. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to award the 

bid for the Baseball and Softball Field Improvements and Lighting Replacement Project at A. A. 

Comeaux Park to the low bidder, GeoSurfaces, Inc., in the amount of $2,398,000.00.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to surplus unit 489 

(2002 Honda Accord), unit 555 (2009 Ford Crown Victoria) and unit 533 (2009 Ford Crown 

Victoria) for the Abbeville Police Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

- gave the Main Street Manager report on behalf of Charlene Beckett who could not attend 

the meeting tonight.  The overhang that was damaged from the storm was repaired at 

the Sam Guarino Blacksmith Museum.  If Headstones Could Talk cemetery tour will be held 

on November 12, 2021 from 5:30 PM to 8:00 PM at the St. Mary Magdalen Old Catholic 

Cemetery.  The Christmas Stroll will be held on December 2, 2021 from 5:30 PM to 8:00 

PM.  Charlene and 5 Garden Club members attended the Keep Louisiana Beautiful 

Conference in Baton Rouge on October 13, 2021-October 14, 2021.  KAB was awarded 

$500 because they met all the requirements.  The hanging flower baskets for Pere Megret 

Street have been ordered and the brackets have been made and installed.  She is waiting 

on advice from the Garden Club about plantings.  The committee for Harmony Park met 

on 9/23/21.  They have installed a planter at Harmony Park and she wanted to thank Paul 

Tomino and Aurris Wiltz for their assistance.  Without them the project would not have 

been completed.  They are still working to complete the fence and the garden beds. 

- Allie has been doing the press and graphics for the LDRC townhall meeting we will have 

tomorrow at City Hall.  She took pictures of the Garden Club installation at Harmony Park.  

She is starting a new segment on our Facebook page called “Community Corner”.  We will 

promote the community services and events going on to serve the community, like at the 

Christian Service Center, the Free Store on Lamar, Harmony Park updates, the Women’s 

Center and others.  She is promoting the Christmas Stroll, the Cemetery Tour and the 

Veteran’s Heritage Festival.  The bridge closure announcement reached over 14,000 

people.  We had to update it because the State pushed the start date back.  She is working 

closely with Lieutenant Touchet and Shaun for updated information on what’s happening. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- Over a 4-pound bass was caught at LaFitte Park this weekend. 

- The state stopped funding the Louisiana Military Museum and Dr. Elista Istre has made 

great strides with the museum.  He wanted to recognize her and thank her.  What she has 

done at the Museum is incredible.  Please go by and visit the museum.  It is beautiful. 

 

 

 

8



4 
 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- She acknowledged the people who attended tonight’s meeting.  It is important to come 

and get it here at the City Council meeting where it happens.   

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- A great time to be in our beautiful downtown.  There are a lot of activities that are about 

to start.  It begins with the Historic Cemetery tour on November 12, 2021.  The Christmas 

Stroll will be on December 2, 2021 and we will have a big Christmas event on December 

11, 2021.  Get out and enjoy. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- He distributed the September 2021 residential electric rate comparison of several other 

cities and electrical providers.  Once again, because of our tremendous electrical franchise 

agreement that we have with Constellation, we are right in line with SLEMCO and we are 

way below Entergy and CLECO.  For 1,000 KWH if you live south of Abbeville in the City 

limits you are paying $120 (with Entergy) compared to $101 with the City of Abbeville.  

That is $20 more per 1,000 KWH.  If you are a CLECO customer you would pay $127 for 

1,000 KWH compared to $101 in Abbeville.  That is a huge difference.  We have one of the 

best utility franchise prices in Louisiana and a lot of that savings was passed on to our 

citizens and businesses. 

- Asked Chief Spearman about the Neighborhood Watch program.  Chief Spearman stated 

we do have the program.  Lieutenant Touchet stated they currently have no active watch 

groups at this time but if anyone would like to start a watch group, they can call him.  He 

has all the information.  Councilwoman White asked Lieutenant Touchet to get with Allie 

to post that on our social media. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Tomorrow everyone is invited to stop by City Hall for a quick visit.  The Louisiana Economic 

Development team will be here presenting the goals that came out of the community 

survey that we did.  We want community feedback on those goals.  That will be from 8:00 

AM to 6:00 PM tomorrow at City Hall.  Drop in at your leisure.   

- She is working with the Math Depot and Soulful Eats to plan another City-Wide cleanup 

on December 18, 2021.  She will provide more details as they become available. 

- She is excited about the Veterans’ Day event on November 12th and 13th.   

- We are working on a very exciting day on December 11, 2021.  She is excited to work with 

the different organizations to plan a family fun Christmas celebration for Abbeville.   

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

9



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

November 16, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on November 16, 2021 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Brady Broussard, Jr., Terry 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Lee Schexnaider, Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Tommy Picard, Park & Recreation Director, QSA  

    Eddie Langlinais, Vermilion Parish Crime Stoppers 

    Rita Marks 

    Gloria Mitchell 

               

Mayor Piazza asked for a moment of silence to ease the suffering of the family that had an 

incident here in Abbeville this afternoon.  Let us pray for that young child and that he will make it 

and for the violence to stop in our community.  Mayor Piazza led the assembly in the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  

 

Mr. Eddie Langlinais stated that Crime Stoppers is an organization that is over 40 years old.  It is 

a proven organization that helps law enforcement to gather tips anonymously.  We started out in 

March and it was up and running in October.  Crime Stoppers is funded through the courts.  It is 

called a Tips program.  Every court charges a $2 court cost and it is accumulated and sent to Crime 

Stoppers.  These funds are used to pay off tipsters.  It cost about $4,500 to run the program.  You 

have an answering service, the P3 app and a dedicated phone line.  With the help of some local 

sponsors, like the Abbeville Rotary Club, it helped us to get where we needed to be.  Mayor Piazza 

asked how do we get the message out?  Mr. Langlinais stated they are on Crime Stoppers on all 

three local television networks and Acadiana Open Channel.  We have our own videographer and 

send the video to all the networks.  They also have a Facebook page.  Crime Stoppers will pay out 

for a substantial tip.  The tips line is 740-TIPS and you can also use the P3 App.  We also share our 

videos with the Abbeville Police Department too for their website.  We recently featured an old 

case through the Abbeville Police Department.  It was the Rita Jordan case that remains unsolved.  

He was able to meet with Ms. Rita Jordan’s family.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills 

paid in the month of October 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

10



2 
 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any public comments on any agenda item.  There were none. 

 

-02 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to enter into a public 

hearing to receive comments regarding a proposed ordinance to adopt LSA R.S. 32:2531, et 

sequa, “Louisiana Litter and Penalties”.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. stated that the State legislature made changes to their littering 

statutes so the City’s should equal to those.  That is why we are proposing these changes. 

 

-03 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to reconvene the 

regular meeting from public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

White/Plaisance 

Ordinance 21-08 

 

An ordinance to adopt LSA R.S. 32:2531, et sequa, “Louisiana Litter and Penalties” as subpart 176 

of Chapter 13-Offenses Miscellaneous, Article I, Section 13-1, state statutes. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  5(Plaisance, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet, White) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the motion was adopted unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve a special 

event permit for the Boys and Girls Clubs of Acadiana to hold the “Making Spirits Bright” event 

at A. A. Comeaux Park on December 11, 2021 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to surplus unit 

477 (2006 Ford Crown Victoria), unit 531 (2009 Ford Crown Victoria), unit 566 (2011 Ford Crown 

Victoria), unit 530 (2009 Ford Crown Victoria), unit 570 (2011 Ford Crown Victoria) and unit 568 

(2011 Ford Crown Victoria) for the Abbeville Police Department.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to award the 

bleacher bid for A. A. Comeaux Park to the low bidder, Sturdi Steel, in the amount of $113,755.00.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to authorize 

advertisement for public bids utilizing LMA/LAMATS services for ADA 6 station portable 

restrooms to be funded by American Rescue Plan Act funds.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the 

quote from Griner Drilling for the upgrades to the Barn Lift Station pump #1 and #2 in the amount 

of $9,985.00 per pump plus labor to be paid from the American Rescue Plan Act funds.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

11



3 
 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve 

payment of the invoice from Griner Drilling in the amount of $13,046.40 for repairs to pump #3 

at the Barn Lift Station.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilwoman Broussard discussed the purchase of two basketball goals with gooseneck posts 

for the McKinley Scott Park Pavilion.  She had received quotations from Hahn Enterprises for 

different options.  The fiberglass backboard is $5,334.00, the aluminum backboard is $6,248.00 

and the glass backboard is $7,350.00.  She would like the glass backboard.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that these prices include installation but we could install those ourselves.  He was also concerned 

about the placement of the gooseneck posts shown on the quotation.  He doesn’t want to drill 

holes in the new slab because it will crack it.  Mr. Tommy Picard stated that the City has two 

fiberglass backboards in storage at the Delcambre concession.  Brandon Briggs could fabricate 

something custom.  You would get exactly what you want.  The goals are very nice as they were 

from Abbeville High School.  They would be better than what you can purchase here since they 

were on a high school court.  Mayor Piazza thought that was a good idea and our crews could 

install them.  Tommy stated he would meet with Councilwoman Broussard and Brandon. 

 

-10 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to table the 

purchase of two basketball goals with gooseneck posts for McKinley Scott Park Pavilion and to 

authorize Tommy Picard to meet with Councilwoman Broussard and Brandon Briggs to utilize the 

two basketball goals in storage and to have Brandon build the custom posts are needed for the 

pavilion.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

plan change number 3 relative to the Rehabilitation of the Runway and Partial Taxiway Project.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve estimate 

for partial payment number 5 payable to Elliott Construction, LLC for the Rehabilitation of the 

Runway and Partial Taxiway Project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/White 

Resolution R21-40 

 

A resolution of acceptance authorizing the Mayor to execute an act of acceptance relative to the 

Rehabilitation of the Runway and Partial Taxiway Project. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/Touchet 

Resolution R21-41 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an electrical and service road servitude agreement 

with Erath Sugar Company, Ltd. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

12



4 
 

Plaisance/T. Broussard 

Resolution R21-42 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a sewer servitude agreement with Erath Sugar 

Company, Ltd. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

B. Broussard/Touchet 

Resolution R21-43 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement between the City 

of Abbeville and Abbeville General Hospital for suplused equipment belonging to the hospital.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

The next item on the agenda was a report by the Chief of Police on recent shootings, status of 

communication officer and camera installations at apartment complexes.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that his issue in the past has been communications between the City fathers and the Police 

Department.  You (Chief Spearman) told us several meetings back that either you or your 

communications officer was going to keep the Mayor and Council informed whenever there was 

a shooting in our community.  This is no reflection on Jonathan.  He is an excellent employee and 

one of our finest Lieutenants.  Where did the breakdown occur?  What happened?  Chief 

Spearman stated that the Mayor is supposed to have an app on his phone that comes out every 

time there is a shooting.  Mayor stated he does not have than and no one told him about that.  

Lieutenant Touchet stated the Mayor should be receiving a page about shots fired.  Chief 

Spearman stated that Todd O’Bryan was supposed to install it on the Mayor’s phone.  Mayor 

stated that is has not been installed.  Chief Spearman stated he would get Todd to install it.  Chief 

Spearman stated that we have arrested a suspect in Sunday’s shooting.  They came from 

Lafayette to do the shooting.  We had a shooting today and we have a suspect at headquarters 

being questioned by the detectives.  The other shooting that everybody wants to know about, 

they threw us out of their hospital rooms.  They do not want to talk to us and they do not want to 

give us any information.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that the shootings are taking over our 

City.  It is really bad and people are afraid.  She understands that in the past we have had meetings 

where the City Council, Mayor and Chief of Police put forth effort to go out to the community.  In 

the beginning, for two or three meetings, it was full.  Then after a while people slacked up on 

attending the meetings.  We had a meeting in McKinley Scott Park and only 7 people showed up.  

Then following that, a month later, a mother called a meeting at McKinley Scott Park and we had 

about 15 people there.  People want to hear more from our Chief of Police.  They need to be 

comforted so they can feel safe.  She represents a district that has been hit very hard especially 

today when the young man was getting off a school bus.  It is troubling.  She is very troubled by 

that.  People are scared and what do we say to them?  They are scared and they want answers.  

She understands that if you have nothing to go on that is hard.  Homes of innocent people are 

being shot into.  How do we, as a Mayor and Council, go out and continue to say that is will be ok 

when a kid getting off the school bus today was shot?  Councilman Plaisance stated that it is not 

going to be ok.  The problem we are having right now are the ages between 14 and 17 years old.  

Chief Spearman stated that both people involved in today’s shooting are juveniles.  The other 

night the car we stopped were juveniles, except for the one who was driving the car.  Councilman 

Plaisance asked Chief Spearman if he is zoning the City?  Chief Spearman stated that they have 

patrol requests.  They are all over the City.  Councilman Plaisance stated to the Chief that he has 

the hardest job around.  You are working hard.  Somehow, someway, as a community, we have 

13



5 
 

to find a solution for this.  We could lose a child here.  He may not make it.  He feels for 

Councilwoman Broussard in her district but it is not just there.  A couple of night’s ago there was 

a borage of gunshots that they heard from his house.  Maybe we need a coalition of members 

from all the districts.  Somebody has to come up with a solution.  He wanted to also address the 

cameras at Stonebridge.  He understands that they are not working.  Chief Spearman stated that 

he knows they are installing them and they are still using the courtesy officers from the Sheriff 

that live out there.  Councilman Plaisance stated that we have an ordinance that says that they 

have to have those cameras working.  Your department has to enforce that.  Are we enforcing 

that?  Mayor Piazza stated that he knows we can’t have people checking those cameras every 

day but if you can could take one apartment complex a month or every other week to see if these 

cameras are working.  If they are not working then you need to immediately notify the City 

attorney where he can contact the owners.  The City attorney will handle it from there.  The burden 

on you, the Chief, is to see if the cameras are working.  If they do not comply, then we will fine 

them.  Councilman Touchet asked are people fearful if they do something, there will be 

consequences?  Are we being proactive?  We have to do what we need to do so that there is that 

respect out there that you better not come into Abbeville just like you don’t go through Maurice 

and speed.  If you speed in Maurice, you will get stopped.  It is not just happening there.  It is 

happening in Councilwoman White’s district too.  It will start spilling over into places where we 

will be shocked that it is happening.  Chief Spearman stated they are working with the violent 

crimes task force and we are putting up cameras.  His guys are working overtime.  Councilman 

Touchet asked if the State Police could come to help.  Chief Spearman stated the State Police will 

not come.  Mayor Piazza stated they will not come.  We have called them numerous times.  They 

do not have the manpower.  Mayor Piazza asked Lieutenant Touchet about the Neighborhood 

Watch program.  Was there any luck there?  Chief Spearman stated they had 1 person attend a 

meeting one night, 5 attended another night and 2 attended another night.  We have advertised 

a lot.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that she had attended and none from her district showed 

up.  Ms. Rita Marks stated that she lives in the sticks.  If you are from Abbeville, you know where 

the sticks are and you know the condition it is in.  People are afraid of retaliation.  People are 

afraid to call the police because they don’t know who is answering the phone.  People don’t know 

who will respond to the call.  Its not so much responding, as how you respond.  One of the issues 

is that they need to give raising the children back to the responsibility of parents.  There is a thick 

line between chastising and abuse.  You know your child is bad.  You know your child goes out the 

window at night and goes God knows where and does God knows what.  Police officers have a 

job to do and parents have a job to do.  She has grandchildren.  She will not let anybody tell her 

that she can’t whip them.  Because when they go downtown, if you get a bad police officer, you 

will get yourself beat.  Would you rather a beating from them or a whipping from me?  They shoot 

in her neighborhood.  They ride down the street with loud music that you can hear from blocks 

away.  The solution to this problem is teamwork.  We can’t point the finger at the police 

department.  We can’t point the finger at the sheriff department.  We can’t point the finger at 

the school system.  It takes all of these entities to make one good resolution.  The problem is 

people coming from outside of the City because they heard how Abbeville is “Cush”.  You can do 

anything you want because the police department is scared to come out.  You are getting 

everything that is coming in from all over and doing what they want in Abbeville and they are 

leaving Abbeville with a name.  We will not generate any new businesses in Abbeville with a 

reputation like that.  We won’t generate jobs.  People don’t want to come here and bring their 

families into turmoil.  You walk out your door and you don’t know who will pass by and shoot you 

or who will break into your house and hurt your family when you are not there.  We can solve this 

problem but what we have to do is go back to basics.  She raised her children as a single parent 

and she was not afraid to spare the rod.  She told them that when you will call the police, by the 

time they get here, she will do you in.  They are going to take me, give me my keys and you need 

to find somewhere else for you to stay because you cannot stay in my house.  You have to let the 

14



6 
 

parents be parents.  If the child is hard-headed and wants to do what they want to do, that parent 

brought them here.  Call 911, call 119, call whoever you want but we have to get back to basics.  

That is the only way we will solve any problems here.  Finger pointing is not going to solve any 

problems.  She doesn’t care where you live, it is coming.  You can live in St. Francis on the highway.  

Somebody could easily pass in your neighborhood there and start shooting for no reason.  It is to 

find somebody who will pick the phone up, that will not be afraid, and say somebody needs to 

come and see what is going on here.  You have too many people hiding behind closed doors but 

they are the first ones to want to point a finger when something goes wrong.  If you are not part 

of the solution then you are part of the problem.  Chief Spearman stated that they have a lot of 

ways they can call anonymously.  Crime Stoppers is just the latest one.  As long as they don’t give 

their name, they will never know who called in.  Councilman Broussard agreed that it does begin 

in the home and it will always start in the home.  You can end it in the home.  Ms. Rita Marks 

stated that there are single parents who are leaving children home because they have to work.  If 

that child does something that they know they are not supposed to do, then you go home and 

they get a whipping for it. They should just take their licks.  Ms. Gloria Mitchell wanted to speak 

about what was said earlier about not calling in something.  She was sitting out on her porch two 

years ago when there was an incident where they were shooting at each other.  She called it in, 

gave her name, the police came and took the statement and then the parents told her that the 

police told them that she has reported it.  That is why a lot of people don’t want to say anything.  

She falls and hits the floor.  She has bullet holes in the carport.  What do you want her to do?  

Every time she calls then they will say what she said.  This is what happened to her.  Chief 

Spearman stated there is a way for them to call anonymously.  They have had that in place for 

years.  Councilwoman White stated that she agrees that the Chief has the hardest job in the City 

and our officers have one of the hardest jobs in the City.  She would not want that job.  Our 

community is looking for leadership from you, Chief, where you come out and express to them, 

just like you just said to us, the measures you are taking to try and protect them.  They want to 

hear it from you (Chief).  They don’t want to hear it from Steven Menard.  She asked Chief 

Spearman to be proactive in that message.  It would go a long way to rebuild trust and people 

feeling safer in their community if you would speak to the people publicly about it.  That is part of 

what they are looking for.  We have a long way to rebuild trust in our community.  She knows that 

broke down over time in the past.  It wasn’t just one person sitting up here’s fault but we all have 

a lot to do and it starts with communication.  That is how you make the first step.  Rebuilding that 

communication between City Hall and the police, rebuilding the communication between the 

community and us, as Mayor and Council; that is where we start taking those steps.   

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to table the request 

to authorize the payment to Glenn Lege Construction in the amount of $30,655.70 for the 

cleaning of the concrete lined coulee because the job is not complete and there will also be a 

change in the price.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the use 

of American Rescue Plan Act funds to pay for the replacement of rotor #3 and #5 at the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The quote was approved in the amount of $159,750.00 from 

Superior Services at the October 19, 2021 regular City Council meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Councilman Broussard asked if the engineering fees could also be paid from the American Rescue 

Plan Act funds.  Mr. Gene Sellers stated only if you go through a procurement process.  It would 

be best to pay those out of pocket instead.  Mayor Piazza asked Ike to review this for future 

projects. 

 

15



7 
 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- He has been on the job for 6 days.  He grew up the second day with a boil water advisory.  

There a lot of good employees in his department.  There are a lot of good people.  His plan 

is to work with them and give them some supervisory skills to make that department 

better.   

- He will get the Barn and the Yard cleaned up with the Mayor and Council’s support.  He 

has already started on that.  Tires have been piled in a pile and he will call a company to 

come pick those up.  He has a couple of companies coming to give quotes to remove all 

the stuff that is there now.  We have also started a cleanup of the two buildings on the By-

pass.  Councilman Touchet stated that he met with Mr. Gautreaux and it is so refreshing 

because there are a couple of things that we fail to understand.  We hold our constituents 

and our residents to a certain standard as far as their properties but yet when you look at 

our properties, it is a total embarrassment.  If we hold other people accountable, then we 

need to do it ourselves too.  We have two main buildings on the By-pass and if we don’t 

keep those up, how are we expecting other people to do so.  He fully supports everything 

that he is doing.  He likes what he hears from him as far as being proactive.  When you see 

a stop sign that needs to be changed: change it.  You don’t have to call him.  We will do 

whatever we can to support Chris.  Councilman Broussard stated that Rome was not built 

in one day.  Thank you for the start and we love your energy to get it done. 

- He toured all the different departments.  We can help you spend the $4,000,000 because 

we have a lot of projects where it can be used.   

- As he goes, he will know more.  If you have any questions, please call him. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- We have just completed two really big significant drainage projects.  We still have a little 

bit of work to do at the concrete lined coulee.  They did a fantastic job.  We took it a step 

further than that.  After Glenn Lege completed the main trunkline of the coulee, Sam Riche 

and his grandson went and put stump killer on every stump that was cut so they don’t 

come back.  We also completed the drainage project on 2nd Street, 5th Street and Lafayette 

Street.  He asked Richard Primeaux about the ditch by Harvestime Church.  Mr. Primeaux 

stated the drainage board has agreed to take care of that but they haven’t done the work 

yet.  He will ask them to put it on their agenda again at their next meeting to get an 

update.  He is not sure why that hasn’t been done yet.  He will ask them about Hunter 

Canal too.  Councilwoman White also stated there is a tree that is down in Valcourt Coulee 

that is already on the drainage board’s project list.  It is Valcourt Coulee where it comes 

out at the Vermilion River.  Mayor Piazza stated that Richard will need some support from 

the Police Jury.  He asked Councilman Broussard to reach out to Wayne Touchet about 

Hunter Coulee.  We want it cleaned from A. A. Comeaux Drive to the Vermilion River.  He 

also asked Councilman Touchet to reach out to his Police Juror too.  Councilman Broussard 

stated that Juror Touchet is in favor of that and we have confirmation from Mr. Gaspard 

that Hunter Coulee is the next project in line and they would like to use the City’s dump 

trucks.  Mr. Primeaux stated that Wayne Theriot has also committed some Police Jury 

dump trucks. 

- The street patching project started yesterday. 

- The walking trail at LaFitte Park has been staked and is ready to go.  There will be a 

preconstruction meeting in the next few weeks. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Jason Harmon will be retiring on December 22, 2021.  Captain Macy Broussard will move 

up to Assistant Chief.  Firefighter David Landry will be moving up to Captain. 

16



8 
 

- Jared Ruffin will be graduating from LSU Academy the second week in December.  He is at 

the top of the class of 22 recruits. 

- Firefighter C. J. Daniels that was hired recently is an excellent firefighter.   

- Station 1 repairs to the air conditioner and hot water tank have been completed. 

- The aerial truck is broken and we are waiting for parts. 

- They had 50 calls within the last two weeks. 

 

Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

- Discussed calls in the last two weeks.  They had 326 calls. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- The first annual Veterans’ Festival was a big success.  The displays on Friday and Saturday 

were excellent.  They were from different wars throughout history.  They also had tours 

inside the museum.  There are a lot of good items in the museum.  He had to call Chris 

Gautreaux because the barricades never came.  Chris did an excellent job and he got some 

barricades over there.   

- The drainage board cleaned Youngs coulee on both sides and they also did the pond.  

Bridget has some community service people who weedeated around the pond.  It is really 

nice for fishing right now except there are a whole lot of water moccasins.  They have 

nested in the rock area that goes down to the water pipe.  He is working with Wildlife & 

Fisheries to trap those snakes and remove them.  People are still fishing out there though. 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Thanked the Mayor and Richard Primeaux for meeting with her to discuss the flooding in 

her district and what they are working on. 

- Her constituents are happy about the coulee. 

- Thank Ms. Rita for praying with her.  There is a lot happening in her district and it became 

overwhelming for her today. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr.  

- There will be a Farmers Market on 11/20/21 and the Christmas Stroll is on 12/2/2021. 

- Ms. Rita hit the nail on the head.  It we do not correct the home, if we do not correct the 

parent and we do not take control of what comes from the home we will never solve this. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- After the stroll, on December 11, 2021, we will be having a large Christmas celebration in 

Abbeville.  There will be multiple civic organization working together.  We will have a walk 

in the morning by Junior Auxiliary, a Christmas parade, vendors in the street, 

entertainment in the Square and a holiday light trail at A. A. Comeaux Park.   

- She is happy that the roadcut repair crew is in town.  She is happy we will finally repair the 

roadcut on Graceland.  It has been needing it for a while.  She looks forward to doing some 

updates on that street in 2022. 

- One shooting in any area of this City is too many.  She would like us to work towards having 

a zero tolerance for violent crime in Abbeville and making us become a place where no 

one would dare come here and commit a violent crime.  That is what our goal should be 

and we need to work together to get there. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

17



9 
 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk     Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer     Mayor 

 

 

 

 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 

Southern Constructors, LLC | 6313 Highway 90 East, New Iberia, LA 70560 

December 2, 2021 

 
CITY OF ABBEVILLE 
Attn: Lee Schexnaider 
P. O. Box 1170 

Abbeville, LA 70511 

 

Subject: Scope & Cost Proposal 

  Main Lift Station By-Pass and Wet well Cleaning 

   

Dear Mr. Lee, 

 

Southern Constructors, LLC (SC) is pleased to submit the following scope and cost proposal to you for the subject 

project. All items of work or services not specifically addressed are not considered and thereby excluded from this 

proposal. 

 

SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES 

SC proposes to furnish labor and equipment on cost not to exceed basis in accordance with the type of 

manpower and equipment requested, listed in the table below.  

If adverse situations arise due to any lag time due to unforeseen conditions which cause the work to shut 

down for the day prior to its end, SC will charge a minimum of ten (10) hour workdays if crew is on site. The Bypass 

Pumping set up and pumping operation cost are a one-time fee as listed below. 

 

Please note: Should a situation arise warranting a larger or different or additional machine, such will be 

billed accordingly to SC’s 2021 Standard Rates Sheet.  

Item Description Units 
Unit 

Measure 

Mobilization 1 LS 

Labor & Equipment 1 LS 

Pump/Vacuum Truck 1 LS 

Sewer Disposal Fee 9,000 Gal. 

Bypass Pumping Set Up & Operation 1 LS 

 

We are proposing to perform this work for an estimated cost of $52,640.00. We do not expect to go above that 

cost. If we encounter any unforeseen obstacles or conflicts that would cause more work and thus more expenses, 

we will contact the owner’s representative immediately to address it prior to moving forward. 

An initial one-time mobilization is included in the price above. If SC is required to leave and remobilize due to any 

unforeseen reason, SC will charge $1,500.00 for each additional mobilization. SC requires a 2-week written notice 

prior to mobilization.  

Owner’s on-site representative will be required to implement and manage the daily job site safety analysis and 

overall safety protocols to be followed for all SC employees.  

61



Scope & Cost Proposal 
 Page 2 

Southern Constructors, LLC | 6313 Highway 90 East, New Iberia, LA 70560 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Southern Constructors, LLC (SC) is a fully licensed and bonded contractor in the State of Louisiana. SC 

employees are fully covered by workers compensation insurance. 

2. Taxes on permanent materials for SC’s scope of work have been included in this proposal. 

3. The owner shall provide adequate storage areas to store all equipment and construction materials related 

to the work during periods when no work is being performed. No provisions are included for storing 

materials in a remote location, or double-handling of materials. 

4. This proposal includes the cost for material supply & delivery, labor for installation, supervision, tools, and 

equipment necessary to perform all items of work included in this proposal. 

5. Any unforeseen site conditions, obstructions, utilities, or the like, that are encountered during 

construction will be subject to a change order that shall be negotiated with the Owner. 

6. Any alteration or deviation from the original plans identified in this proposal involving extra cost will be 

executed only upon written orders and will become an additional charge over and above this estimate. 

7. Insurance: SC will provide the following limits as shown. 

General Liability: $1,000,000    

Automotive: $1,000,000   

Worker Compensation: $1,000,000 

Excess Liability: $5,000,000 

8. SC will submit written warranties to the owner prior to final execution of the final acceptance. Unless 

otherwise directed all warranties begin with the date stipulated in the final acceptance. 

9. This scope & cost proposal is good for 30 days. 
 

EXCLUSIONS 

a. Additional manpower and equipment that is not shown in the table above, Testing, Retainage, 

Striping, Barricades, Traffic Control, Asphalt & Concrete pavement patching, Construction Layout, 

Surveying. SC can provide a proposal for additional resources and/or services upon request. 

b. All Materials (to be furnished by owner in a timely manner)  

c. Insurance Coverage Outside of the Limits provided in the Certificate of Insurance from SC. 

d. Performance and Payment Bonds 

e. Builders Risk Insurance Policy 

 

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 

Payment is due upon receipt of invoice. Invoices will be generated and submitted on a weekly basis. SC will not 

continue providing its services without payment. 

 

 

SCHEDULE 

Upon receiving your acceptance of our proposal, we will assemble a crew and equipment and mobilize within two 

(02) weeks’ notice. 

 

In closing, we thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. We trust that it meets your request and 

expectations. We look forward to assisting you in your efforts. If you have any questions concerning our proposal, 

please contact me at your convenience. 

 

62



Scope & Cost Proposal 
 Page 3 

Southern Constructors, LLC | 6313 Highway 90 East, New Iberia, LA 70560 

Sincerely, 

SOUTHERN CONSTRUCTORS, LLC 

 

 

Seth M. Babineaux 

Owner/Member 

 

ACCEPTANCE 

In lieu of a more formal contract; if the information presented in this proposal meets your approval, please sign 

below on the acceptance line and return one signed copy as your acceptance and authorization for us to proceed. 

 

 

 

Authorized Signature  

 

  

Date 

 

 

Print Name & Title 

 

 

63



Estimate

Date
11/16/21

Estimate No.
3

Name/Address
City of Abbeville
lschexnaider@cityofabbeville

Project

Bihmco
167 Gentry Drive
Washington, LA 70589

Item Description Quantity Cost Total
01 Material and labor to install 14”x8” bypass on

existing 14” force main. Also have Luke Deshotel
suck out debris, clean tank, and dispose of debris.
Provide bypass pumping for time to clean tank.

1 54,824.00 54,824.00

$54,824.00Total $54,824.00

64



The following was offered by                                                                                            , seconded by 

   , and duly resolved: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE AUTHORITY TO THE MAYOR  

TO SIGN AND SUBMIT ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, APPOINT  

AN ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTANT AND ENGINEER, AND COMMIT  

COSTS FOR CDBG-CV LOVE LOUISIANA OUTDOORS PROGRAM. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana has announced that applications are being accepted for the 

CDBG-CV Love Louisiana Outdoors Program; and 

 WHEREAS, the Love Louisiana Outdoors Program offers grants to eligible municipalities and 

parishes for a range of projects to provide suitable space for activities to encourage physical distancing 

and support social distancing guidance; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Abbeville deems it necessary and proper to submit an application for 

funding under the CDBG-CV Love Louisiana Outdoors Program for the construction of a fishing pier at 

Lafitte Park; and 

 WHEREAS, professional engineering services are necessary in connection with the preparation 

of the application and the engineering design and inspection, should the project be funded; and 

 WHEREAS, professional grants consulting and administrative consulting services are necessary 

to assist in the preparation of the application and the partial administration of the grant, should the project 

be funded; and 

 WHEREAS, according to the base rating factors, up to four (4) bonus points will be assigned to 

those applicants which commit local funds to pay the cost of the application preparation and should the 

project be funded, all of the associated engineering and administrative fees associated with the 

implementation of this project.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Abbeville that 

the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, is hereby authorized to sign and submit an application for funding 

and all the necessary documents in connection with the CDBG-CV Love Louisiana Outdoors Program. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor Piazza is hereby authorized to negotiate and sign a 

contract with Sellers & Associates, Inc. to prepare the application for funding, and if the application is 

funded, provide the professional engineering services required and provide the professional grant 

administrative services required, and the City herby commits to pay all engineering fees and grant 

administrative consulting fees associated with the implementation of the CDBG-CV Love Louisiana 

Outdoors Program should the project be funded to receive four (4) points in the scoring of this 

application. 

 THEREUPON, the above resolution was duly adopted. 

****************************************************************************** 

 

C E R T I F I CA T E 

 

I, Kathy Faulk, City Clerk for the City of Abbeville, do hereby certify that the above is a true and 

exact copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Abbeville on December 7th, 

2021, at which time a quorum was present and voting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
N:\DATA\9414\9414-02 Application\ABBEVILLE Resolution.docx 

 

KATHY FAULK 

CITY CLERK 

CITY OF ABBEVILLE 

65



66



67



68


	Top
	1.	Police Dept personnel
	2.	Fire dept personnel
	1.	Retirees
	1.	Minutes
	November 2, 2021 Committee meeting
	November 2, 2021 regular meeting
	November 16, 2021 regular meeting

	2.	Bills
	November 2021 check register

	1.	Holidays for 2022
	Holidays for 2022 resolution

	2.	Bids-400 Gauraud Street
	Picture of fallen tree 400 Gauraud
	BROWN&#39;S DEMOLITION {400 GAURAUD }
	RUSSELL ALXIS {400 GAURAUD ST}
	TONY LANDRY {400 GAURAUD ST}

	3.	Bids-300 S. East
	1. PICTURES OF FALLEN TREE 300 S East
	RECEIVED BID FROM RUSSELL ALEXIS {300 S. EAST ST}
	BID RECEIVED FROM TONY LANDRY {300 S. EAST ST}
	BID RECEIVED BROWN&#39;S DEMOLITION {300 S. EAST}
	BID RECEIVED ROLAND BRAILEY {300 S. EAST ST}

	4.	Wet well clean out Main sewer lift station
	SC Proposal - REV1
	Estimate (No. 3) from Bihmco

	5.	Love Louisiana Outdoors program
	ABBEVILLE Resolution LaFitte Park fishing piers

	6.	IGA with VPPJ for parking lot at airport
	7.	Airport lease National Guard Infantry land
	8.	Camper spots at Comeaux Park
	9.	Sod for Sellers Field
	Quote for sod

	10.	Comeaux park renovation payment #1
	Pay app 1-Comeaux Park renovation

	1.	Restroom trailers
	1.	Executive session
	Bottom

